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to. 
General Manager 
Central Darling Shire Council 
Att. Reece Wilson 
21 Reid Street 
Wilcannia NSW 2836 
 
 

  date. 
1.09.2022 
 

reference. 
32342-PL02A 

 

Dear Sir 

 

Re: Development Application Approval D/20/2021 – PAN 158296 – Community 
Health Facility 

Site: Bonney Street, Wilcannia 

Subject: Section 4.55(1a) DA Modification 

 

We would like to thank Councils and the Joint Regional Planning Panel for issuing the subject 

planning approval. It will be a much-needed facility for the area. The applicant is in general 

agreeance with the consent conditions however after consultation with designers finds that two (2) 

of the conditions imposed would be unreasonable due to current site conditions and the 

likelihood (and cost) of major redesign works required. Therefore, as outlined below we seek to 

modify these particular consent conditions pursuant to Section 4.55(1a) of the Environmental 

Planning and Assessment Act 1979: 

1. Condition 3.36(i) - The works within the Bonney Street Road reserve are to be offset a 

minimum of 3.5m from the south-eastern boundary to provide a verge area.   

Comment: The 3.5m verge as described in the above condition was not proposed in the 

design submitted as part of the development application. No reason is provided in the 
determination for the imposition of this condition. A sketch showing the approximate 

location of the required verge is provided in Attachment A. 

The purpose of a road verge is typically to provide an area for tree planting/screening; or 

placement for a sidewalk and/or management of urban runoff amongst other things. In 
terms of the specific items abovementioned we note the following: 

 Extensive landscaping using native plant species has been proposed throughout the 

site. A boundary fence treatment exists which shall provide sufficient screening to the 
neighbouring unrelated building which is well setback from the proposed Bonney 

Street carriageway; 

 A sidewalk has been conditioned to be required from Ross Street through the car park 
to the Clinic which is accepted. A sidewalk is not required along the verge; 
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 The Bonney Street road carriageway is designed with a crossfall in the opposite 

direction to the verge area, thus the proposed (much smaller) verge area will not need 
to deal with any significant stormwater runoff. 

The major concern with the required verge is that vehicular traffic will be unable to 

manoeuvre safely via the exiting ramp and the immediate left turn through the gate. The 

proposed verge would require a total redesign of these access arrangements to make safe 
which is then likely to have a knock-on effect for other parts of the development leading to 

time delays and additional costs. Therefore, it is request this part condition be entirely 

deleted. 

 

2. Condition 3.36(x) - Reposition the swale/table drain that currently meanders along the 

north-western side of the development site which conveys the flows from Bonney Street 

and Ross Street within the proposed 3m wide easement allocation along the boundary. 

 

Comment: The 3m verge as described in the above condition was not proposed in the 

design submitted as part of the development application. No reason is provided in the 

determination for the imposition of this condition. A sketch showing the approximate 

location of the swale/easement is provided in Attachment B. 

As shown on the sketch the subject swale is primarily located within the Bonney Street road 

reserve. It then meanders to the west through to adjoining land. It does not encroach the 
subject site where the health clinic building is to be located. 

This swale carries stormwater runoff from Ross and Bonney Streets. An existing culvert is in 

Ross Street which coincides with the subject swale/table drain. 

Our client and the proponent consider it unreasonable to relocate the Ross Street culvert 

and this swale to the north-western boundary and then presumably redirect stormwater (via 

a further new swale) onto the clinic land and create a legal easement over this swale 
presumably to the Darling River. This swale generally collects stormwater unrelated to the 

development, noting that new infrastructure is proposed to pipe the majority of stormwater 

runoff from the car park through the subject site rather than in the direction of the swale. 

Therefore, the swale shall not significantly impact the proposed development or 
neighbouring land, and we request that this part condition be entirely deleted. 

The proposed development as modified provides minimal environmental impacts and shall 

remain substantially the same development as originally granted. 

Feel free to contact me with any queries. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

BARNSON PTY LTD 

 

  

 

Jim Sarantzouklis MAICD AIBS (Assoc.) MEHA RPIA  
DIRECTOR 
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Attachment A – Verge Sketch 
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Attachment B – Swale Sketch 
 




